#### WATERBURY PUBLIC LIBRARY COMMISSIONERS' MEETING DRAFT MINUTES 28 North Main Street – SAL Room Monday, December 11, 2023, at 5:00 PM

Present: Deanna King, Margaret Moreland, Michelle Baker, Anna Black, Kit Walker, Tom Leitz (via Zoom) Rachel Muse

Deanna called the meeting to order at 4:58 PM

Margaret moved to approve the agenda. Kit seconded. All in favor.

Deanna introduced Anna Black, our new Board member.

Margaret moved to approve the November 13, 2023, meeting minutes. Kit seconded. All in favor.

Public comment: none.

#### **Municipal Manager's Report**

- Tom presented the draft budget for 2024. The major changes are an increase in the salaries of Library personnel to begin to make them more equitable and the amount of the Library's 2024 contribution from the Library Trust Fund. It was acknowledged that the goal of the Trust Fund is to maintain stability and generate income and concern was expressed about how an invasion of principal would affect future value. It was also recognized that, even with proposed increases, the salaries of Library personnel will still be below those of comparable positions.
- Deanna moved that the Board adjourn into Executive Session to discuss staff salaries. Michelle seconded. All in favor.
- After returning from Executive Session, Tom noted that he was looking for an agreement in concept.
- The Board noted that it needs to examine the legal documents around the 1998 transfer of assets. Tom and Margaret will locate the documents and send them to each member.
- Tom requested the Board's support when presenting the budget to the Select Board in January and on Town Meeting Day.
- Tom acknowledged the importance of the Board's statutory role in safeguarding Library resources.

#### **Treasurer's Report**

- Michelle reported on the current status of Library funds. As expected, there were additional fluctuations in value during the past month.
- Michelle has determined that, historically, monies from the Joslyn and Howland Trust have been deposited to the town accounts and treated as a subtraction from the amount owed for operating expenses. This procedure will be continued.
- Kit asked about how the Morgan Stanley management fees were calculated and when they are paid. Michelle will look into this.

• Michelle advised the Board that the Friends of the Library had asked for the Board's approval to move money in a capital funds account to an interest-bearing account or CD. The Board agreed (although its approval was not necessary for this action).

#### Library Director's Report

- In response to comments from the community, the Library's Saturday hours will change as of January 1, from 9:00 AM – 1:00 PM to 10:00 AM – 2:00 PM.
- Vermont Reads programming around the book Last Night at the Telegraph Club continued through the month of November.
- For the first time, the Library opened its doors from 4:00 PM to 7:00 PM on Saturday, December 2, the evening of Waterbury's River of Light parade. Sandra had crafts for kids to make and, unexpectedly, a number of people checked out books, asked reference questions, and inquired about library services. This now will be an annual event.
- The Library is now hosting the Waterbury Recreation after school program once a month and will continue to explore ways to collaborate with the Rec Department.
- The Library has acquired a number of sleds that can be borrowed by users and it will be holding a sledding party during Winterfest.
- Over 60 people attended the Friends of the Library program, A Gathering of Celtic and Christmas Music with Jeff Snow, on November 30!
- Sandra, the Youth Librarian, attended Vermont's Gender & Sexuality Alliance Conference in Randolph Center, taking advantage of an opportunity to learn more about resources, connect with other adults who work with LGBTQ+ youth, and share skill building.
- Rachel has become the President of the Catamount Library Network.
- Home delivery has doubled (to 2!) and Meals on Wheels is grateful for another point of contact with those who are home-bound.

#### **Old Business**

• Bylaws: Anna moved to approve the proposed revised bylaws. Kit seconded. All in favor. They will be filed with the Town Clerk.

Deanna adjourned the meeting at 6:57 PM

Next Regular Meeting – Monday, January 8, 2024, at 5:00 PM

APPROVED:

# **Bylaws** Waterbury Public Library Board of Commissioners

Approved - October 4, 2004 Revised - December 11, 2023

## I. PURPOSE OF THE BOARD

The Library Board of Commissioners shall be the governing body of the Waterbury Public Library, with the power to make and revise bylaws, elect officers, establish the Library mission and policies, and appoint a Director for the efficient administration and operation of the Library.

The Waterbury Public Library operates under the laws of the state of Vermont (Vermont Statutes Annotated, Title 22, Chapter 3, Public Libraries). It shall have its primary location at 28 North Main Street, Waterbury, Vermont.

## **II. MEMBERSHIP OF THE BOARD**

The Library Board is composed of five members elected for staggered five-year terms during the annual Town Meeting. Commissioners shall be legal residents of the Town of Waterbury.

Vacancies occurring between elections shall be filled by an individual appointed by the Waterbury Select Board in consultation with the Library Board. Those appointed under this procedure shall stand for election at the next annual Town Meeting to continue serving on the Library Board.

Commissioners shall abstain from deliberations and voting when a conflict of interest arises. A conflict of interest includes any matter in which a Commissioner, an immediate family member of a Commissioner, or an organization which which the Commissioner is associated has a substantial financial or personal interest.

Commissioners shall be expected to attend all meetings except as they are prevented by a valid reason.

## **III. OFFICERS**

The officers of the Library Board shall be a Chair, Vice Chair, Secretary and Treasurer. Officers shall be elected from among the members of the board for one-year terms. The election shall take place at the annual meeting, that is the first regular meeting of the Library Board after the Town Meeting.

Officers and their duties are:

CHAIR - The Chair presides over meetings of the Library Board, prepares (with information from the Library Director and requests from the Board) an agenda for each meeting, and distributes the agenda at least two days prior to the scheduled meeting. The Chair has authority to sign any documents authorized by the Board. In addition, the Chair can establish new committees and generally perform all duties associated with the office of the Chair.

VICE CHAIR - The Vice Chair performs all of the duties of the Chair in their absence and provides assistance when requested.

SECRETARY - The Secretary keeps accurate minutes of all meetings of the Library Board and distributes a draft of the minutes to members of the Board and the Waterbury Town Clerk a minimum of five days following the meeting.

TREASURER - The Treasurer is responsible for maintaining accurate records of Library finances. They shall submit a written report on financial matters at Library Board meetings.

# **IV. MEETINGS**

The Library Board meets at least six times per year. Regular meetings are held at such times, dates and locations as the Library Board may determine. Special meetings can be called by decision of the Chair or at the request of two Commissioners. At least two days notice will be given prior to the scheduled date of a special meeting. Notice of meetings will be posted at the Waterbury Municipal Office, Waterbury Post Offices and the Library in accordance with Vermont Open Meeting Law.

The current edition of Robert's Revised Rules of Order shall govern all meetings of the Library Board except as modified herein.

The order of business at regular meetings shall be set in an agenda, which shall include a scheduled time for public comment. The Chair may adjust the order of business at their discretion to improve the efficiency or to meet the needs of a particular meeting.

A quorum is necessary to conduct business at any meeting. A quorum is composed of three or more members of the Library Board present at a meeting. A majority of those present shall be necessary to approve any action before the Board.

# **V. EXECUTIVE SESSION**

All discussions related to personnel matters, including salaries, and all discussions of the provisions of current or possible future contracts shall be conducted in executive session.

## **VI. COMMITTEES**

Special purpose committees may be established by the Chair. The Chair of the Library Board shall appoint committee members. Special purpose committees shall continue to function until a final report has been submitted to the Library Board. The Library Board may authorize committees to make decisions on particular matters with prior approval from the Library Board.

## **VII. GENERAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES**

Commissioners are responsible for hiring and supervising the Library Director; developing and approving library policies; ensure the budget provides strong support for the mission and objectives of the library; developing the Strategic Plan for library services and programs; and advocate for library services.

The Library Director shall provide a high level of professional library expertise to all operations of the library. The Library Director shall assist the Library Board in developing budgets and policies. The Library Director shall fairly apply library policies and work to fulfill the objectives outlined in the Strategic Plan. The Library Director shall hire, schedule and supervise all library staff and volunteers and maintain working relationships with the Library Board, the Town of Waterbury, community organizations and the public.

The Library Director shall attend each meeting of the Library Board and report on the state of the library.

## **VIII. BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL PROCEDURES**

The Library Director and the Town Manager, with the input of the Library Board, will develop a draft budget for review and approval by the Library Board. The budget is presented to the Select Board during the budget hearing.

# IX. AMENDMENTS

These bylaws may be amended at any regular meeting of the Library Board by a favorable vote of a majority of the fixed membership (3), provided that a motion presenting the amendment was made and seconded at the preceding regular meeting.